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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Project’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Project’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises 
the Budgetary Comparison Information but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditors' report 

thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an 

opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 

consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or 
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that 

an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

San Diego, California 
October 29, 2024 
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Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
Reclamation Project 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2024 

The following discussion and analysis are supplementary information required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and is intended to provide an easily readable explanation of the 
information provided in the attached basic financial statements of the Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble 
Beach Community Services District Reclamation Project (the Project) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 
We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with our financial statements, 
which follow this narrative. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for 2023-24 are as follows: 

• Total Water Sales revenue increased 5.2% over the prior year in water sales with a corresponding 

decrease of 12.0% over the budget. 

Total amount of water sold was 9.2% less than in fiscal year 2022-23. Last year total water sales 

included 812 acre feet (AF) of reclaimed water. That figure contrasts with 882 AF of reclaimed water 

for the current year. 

• Net Non-operating expenses decreased 98.3% over the prior year primarily due to the payoff of all 
debt. 

• Total plant operating expenses were 62.8% less than the prior year but only 3.8% less than budget 
as follows: 

o Plant operating expenses were 1.6% more than in fiscal year 2022-23 and 7.5% under budget. 
Briefly the reasons for the variances: 

■ Plant labor expenses were 4.4% higher than in 2023, reflected most significantly in the 

Lab supervisor up 51 .4%, up 14.1 % plant operators, up 10.3% maintenance mechanic. 
■ Electricity costs increased 8.3%. over prior year but 15.0% under budget. 
■ Chemical costs were down 0.9% from 2023 and still 9.7% under budget. Timing 

continues to make it difficult to compare one year to the next as we expense when 

purchased. Sodium hypochlorite up 80.0% from prior year, polymer up 42% over prior 

year. Clean-in-place chemicals were down 54.0% from 2023, citric acid was down 

29.9% from prior year. 
■ Operating Supplies were 27.8% over budget and 16.6% under prior year. Primary 

overages in Repairs and maintenance (54.8%), electrical supplies (835.9%), and 

Reverse Osmosis (RO) membrane elements (111.8%). 
■ Contractual services were under budget by 15.6% and over prior year actual by 26.0%. 

Contract lab analysis was 246.4% over prior year and 251 .4% over budget. 

o Distribution costs were 29.8% below budget and 17.1% lower than prior year 2022-23. Pebble 
Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) administrative and engineering salaries were 
under budget 11.6% while staff salaries were over budget 0.49%. Utilities were 22.3% higher 
than prior year and 6.7% over budget. Other O&M expenses were 44.8% less than prior year 
and 62.56% under budget - highlights include Forest Lake supplies under budget 99.3%, 
chemicals under budget 40.5%, R & M Viscaino and Poppy Hills pump station under budget 
71.6%, Consulting services under budget $87.9%, an distribution lines under budget 99.4%. 

o Pebble Beach Company and Independent Golf Club Users liaison expenses were 0.2% under 
budget and 3.5% less than prior year. 
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o Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) administrative salaries and other expenses were 
19.3% over budget and 6.1% greater than prior year. Primary overages were in salaries, 
specifically Admin Service Coordinator over budget 103.1%.  

 
o Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) general and administrative costs 

were 5.0% over budget and 2.6% lower than prior year.  
 

o Potable water was 94.5% less than the prior year and 47.6% less than budget. 
 

Using this Financial Report 
 
This annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, and notes to the financial statements. This discussion and analysis are intended to serve 
as an introduction to the Project’s basic financial statements. The Project’s basic financial statements consist 
of three components: 
 

 The Statements of Net Position present information on all of the Project’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position.  

 The Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present information showing how 
the Project’s net position changed during the two most recent fiscal years.  

 The Statements of Cash Flows present information showing how the Project’s cash changed during 
the two most recent fiscal years. It shows the sources and uses of cash.  

 
The financial statements also include Notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements 
and provide more detailed information. They are followed by a section of Supplementary Information that 
further explains and supports information in the financial statements.  
 
Financial Analysis  
 
The “Amended and Restated Construction & Operation Agreement” became effective July 1, 2013. Revenue 
derived from recycled water on and after that date, including all costs necessary to recover operating capital, 
reserve, financing, and other costs of the Project became the responsibility of Pebble Beach Company, the 
Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group (IRWUG) and Robert Louis Stevenson School. IRWUG refers to 
the unincorporated association of the owners of Cypress Point Golf Club, Northern California Golf Association, 
and the Monterey Peninsula County Club. The amended agreement permits IRWUG to take a full voting seat 
on the Project’s Reclamation Management Committee.  
 
As part of the negotiations, the IRWUG agreed to pay the amounts necessary to recover all operating, capital, 
reserves, financing, and other costs of the Project during each fiscal year. As in the past this includes all 
operation and maintenance expenses, the capital reserve fund, and bond carrying costs. Because California 
American Water Company (Cal-Am) potable water increases are projected well into the future and the value 
of water on the Monterey Peninsula in general is a scarce resource; the IRWUG users became full partners 
in the Project on the assumption that they would be better off if the price of water was “delinked” from Cal-Am 
rates. The operating and capital costs are calculated each year as part of the annual budget process and 
allocated by usage formula to each of the users.  
 
Current assets increased 21.9% from the prior year. Cash on hand increased 19.6%; and Accounts 
Receivables from water sales decreased 30.6% and Capital Assets decreased 4.1% from prior year. The 
Project does not provide an allowance for doubtful accounts because all receivables are collected within 60 
days of each fiscal year end.  
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The Reclamation Project is not currently holding any outside debt. Current trade liabilities decreased 58.8% 
and affiliates decreased 49.3% from prior year. Total current liabilities decreased 51.8% from the prior year. 

Construction-in-Progress included $209K for the CAWD Electrical/Mechanical Upgrade Project, $188K for 
Long Term Capital Plan at CAWD, $34K for Bird Rock Well No. 02, as well as other miscellaneous projects. 

With the implementation of the "Amended and Restated Construction & Operation Agreement" in June 2013, 
the intent was to budget annually for a break-even position. The budgeted cost of operations, capital, and 
debt service are all incorporated into the water sales rate structure. 
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Financial Analysis of the Project (Condensed comparative data) 
 

A summary of Net Position is presented below: 
 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 $ Change % Change June 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

Assets
Current assets 3,513,642$     2,877,224$     636,418$         22.1% 3,206,464$     (329,240)$       -10.3%
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash -                         -                         -                         0.0% 1,175                (1,175)              -100.0%
Deposits 1,197                4,847                (3,650)              -75.3% 3,975                872                   21.9%
Water rights, net 34,856,905     36,499,218     (1,642,313)      -4.5% 37,198,823     (699,605)          -1.9%
Construction in progress 495,625           401,116           94,509             23.6% 505,755           (104,639)          -20.7%

Total assets 38,867,369     39,782,405     (915,036)          -2.3% 40,916,192     (1,133,787)      -2.8%

Liabilities
Current liabilities 490,388           1,016,936        (526,548)          -51.8% 4,064,065        (3,047,129)      -75.0%

Total liabilities 490,388           1,016,936        (526,548)          -51.8% 4,064,065        (3,047,129)      -75.0%

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 35,352,530     36,900,334     (1,547,804)      -4.2% 34,553,753     2,346,581        6.8%
Restricted for debt service -                         -                         -                         0.0% 1,175                (1,175)              -100.0%
Unrestricted 3,024,451        1,865,135        1,159,316        62.2% 2,297,199        (432,064)          -18.8%

Total net position 38,376,981$   38,765,469$   (388,488)$       -1.0% 36,852,127$   1,913,342$     5.2%
 

 
Capital Assets 
 
The MF/RO facility constructed at the Carmel Area Wastewater District’s plant site was completed in 
June 2009. Preliminary engineering study on this project started in 2000. Over the ensuing nine years there 
were multiple engineering and regulatory hurdles, but the facility was finally put into service in 2008 and 
construction was completed the following year.  
 

Significant asset additions in 2023-24 were as follows: 
 

 Lab Ion Chromatograph (CAWD)    $ 59,351 
 Flow Meters Remote Measuring System (PBCSD)  $ 34,078 
 DeChlorination Analyzer (CAWD)    $ 13,384 
 Refurbish Wemco Pump (CAWD)    $ 11,426 
 Refurbish 100hp Pump (CAWD)    $ 10,433 

 
Lab Ion Chromatograph: the Ion Chromatograph unit is coming to the end of its useful life as outlined by the 
manufacturer service representative. The Ion Chromatograph unit is used to analyze the reclaimed water sent 
to Pebble Beach for golf course irrigation. Samples collected and tested on a weekly schedule are the 
Reclaimed Line and MF/RO Blend for the monthly schedule samples that are collected at the PBCSD Storage 
Tank, Pebble Beach Golf Course, Spanish Bay Golf Course and Forest Lake Reservoir. The tests performed 
are the Anion and Cation ions in the water sample. The Anions are negative charged ions – fluoride, chloride, 
nitrate, sulfate and phosphate. The Cations are positive charged ions – Sodium, Ammonium, potassium, 
Magnesium, and Calcium. The sodium absorption ratio and adjusted sodium absorption ratio are calculated 
from the various tests.  
 
Flow Meters Remote Measuring System: Replace the irrigation meters and install cellular antennas to allow 
recycled water meter readings to be remotely monitored. Also replace meter vault, lids, meter piping, valves 
and appurtenances. 
 
The Project does not own the capital equipment it uses; it is owned by the public agencies that manage and 
operate the Project. For this reason, the value earned for the capital expenditures incurred is reflected on the 
Project books as water resale rights, an intangible capital asset.  
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June 2009. Preliminary engineering study on this project started in 2000. Over the ensuing nine years there 
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Lab Ion Chromatograph: the Ion Chromatograph unit is coming to the end of its useful life as outlined by the 
manufacturer service representative. The Ion Chromatograph unit is used to analyze the reclaimed water sent 
to Pebble Beach for golf course irrigation. Samples collected and tested on a weekly schedule are the 
Reclaimed Line and MF/RO Blend for the monthly schedule samples that are collected at the PBCSD Storage 
Tank, Pebble Beach Golf Course, Spanish Bay Golf Course and Forest Lake Reservoir. The tests performed 
are the Anion and Cation ions in the water sample. The Anions are negative charged ions - fluoride, chloride, 
nitrate, sulfate and phosphate. The Cations are positive charged ions - Sodium, Ammonium, potassium, 
Magnesium, and Calcium. The sodium absorption ratio and adjusted sodium absorption ratio are calculated 
from the various tests. 

Flow Meters Remote Measuring System: Replace the irrigation meters and install cellular antennas to allow 
recycled water meter readings to be remotely monitored. Also replace meter vault, lids, meter piping, valves 
and appurtenances. 

The Project does not own the capital equipment it uses; it is owned by the public agencies that manage and 
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Lab Ion Chromatograph: the Ion Chromatograph unit is coming to the end of its useful life as outlined by the 
manufacturer service representative. The Ion Chromatograph unit is used to analyze the reclaimed water sent 
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The value of capital assets owned by each entity involved in the Project at year end was as follows: 
 

  2024  2023  2022 
Carmel Area Wastewater District $  40,555,721   $  40,452,906   $  39,712,652  
Pebble Beach Community Services 
District   28,269,846   28,235,768   27,899,845  
MPWMD          29,056  29,056   29,056  
Open Space Users     1,457,777   1,459,777   1,459,777  
Cal-Am        853,727   853,727   853,727  

  $  71,166,127   $  71,031,234   $  69,955,057  

 
Long-Term Debt 
 
The Project currently does not have any long-term debt. It issued Certificates of Participation (COPs) in 1992 
in the amount of $33.9M to finance the Project. Those COPs matured in 2022.  
 
A summary of Changes in Net Position is presented as follows: 

 
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 $ Change % Change June 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

Changes in Net Position
Operating revenues 4,337,330$     6,829,372$     (2,492,042)$    -36.5% 7,220,935$     (391,563)$       -5.4%
Operating expenses (2,980,276)      (3,046,769)      66,493             -2.2% (2,972,796)      (73,973)            2.5%
Amortization (1,779,207)      (1,775,783)      (3,424)              0.2% (1,748,879)      (26,904)            1.5%

Operating income/(loss) (422,153)          2,006,820        (2,428,973)      -121.0% 2,499,260        (492,440)          -19.7%

Investment earnings (loss) 35,301             216                   35,085             16243.1% (13,962)            14,178             -101.5%
Non-operating expenses (1,636)              (93,694)            92,058             -98.3% (97,941)            4,247                -4.3%

Total expenses 33,665             (93,478)            35,085             -37.5% (111,903)          18,425             -16.5%

Changes in net position (388,488)          1,913,342        (2,301,830)      -120.3% 2,387,357        (474,015)          -19.9%

Net position, beginning of year 38,765,469     36,852,127     1,913,342        5.2% 34,464,770     2,387,357        6.9%

Net position, end of year 38,376,981$   38,765,469$   (388,488)$       -1.0% 36,852,127$   1,913,342$     5.2%  
 
Budget Highlights/Variances 
 
An annual budget is adopted by the Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) for management purposes. 
Budget information is reported to the RMC and adjustments to the budget may only be made by resolution of 
the RMC. 
 
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the following budget variances were noted: 
 

 Water sales were under budget 11.9%. Budgeted reclaimed water sales were 1,000 AF while actual 
sales were 882 AF. 
 

 Net investment earnings were 75.3% greater than budget or a variance of $15K. 
 

 CAWD Plant operating expenses were 7.4% under budget. The two largest cost centers 
(Salaries/Benefits 5.1% and Electricity 15.0%) were significantly under budget. Chemicals tracked 
12.3% under budget although we continue to experience tight chain issues and inflationary pressures.  
 

 Plant distribution costs were 29.8% under budget. Admin labor costs were 11.7% under budget and 
field labor was 0.5% over budget. Utilities were 6.7% over budget and Other O&M costs were 62.6% 
under budget. 
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12.3% under budget although we continue to experience tight chain issues and inflationary pressures. 

• Plant distribution costs were 29.8% under budget. Admin labor costs were 11.7% under budget and 
field labor was 0.5% over budget. Utilities were 6.7% over budget and Other O&M costs were 62.6% 
under budget. 
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 CAWD general and administrative salary costs were 26.8% over budget along with other 
miscellaneous costs under budget 13.6%. MPWMD salaries were 5.0% over budget while other 
administrative costs were 24.5% under budget. 
 

 Potable water costs (excluding meter charges) were 47.6% over budget. There was no potable water 
purchased during the year, the charges are solely from meter and service charges. 
 

 Interest income over budget 75.0%. Interest on reserve funds were 136.1% of budget along with gain 
on securities of 16.2%. 
 

 Monterey Peninsula Water Management user fee was 8.8% over budget. 
 
Other Significant Matters 
 
Securing an adequate water supply continues to be the single biggest challenge facing the future. The Project 
has continued efforts to explore opportunities for new water supplies – primarily by drilling wells in Del Monte 
Forest and exploring stormwater diversion to the treatment facility. At the treatment plant we continue efforts 
to increase recovery although the drought in California has resulted in reduced plant influent as conservation 
efforts by the public increase.  
 
The Project has also embarked on a Facilities Master Plan for long term budget planning. The Reclamation 
facility portion of the treatment works is on average 15 years. Detailed planning for the facility is imperative to 
ensure that the project utilizes its assets fully and replaces those that are critical to continued operation. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the Project’s finances for those with an interest in 
this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional 
information should be directed to James Grover, Principal Accountant, at Carmel Area Wastewater District, 
P.O. Box 221428, Carmel, CA 93922, telephone (831) 624-1248, or email grover@cawd.org.  
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2024 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,222,448$             1,021,656$             
Investments 1,230,736               359,808                  
Accounts receivable - water sales 1,029,840               1,484,209               
Accounts receivable - other 30,618                    11,551                    

Total current assets 3,513,642               2,877,224               

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Construction in progress 495,625                  401,116                  
Water resale rights, net of amortization 34,856,905             36,499,218             

Capital assets, net 35,352,530             36,900,334             

Deposits 1,197                      4,847                      

Total noncurrent assets 35,353,727             36,905,181             

Total assets 38,867,369             39,782,405             

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable - trade 107,086                  259,935                  
Accounts payable - affiliates 383,302                  757,001                  

Total current liabilities 490,388                  1,016,936               

Total liabilities 490,388                  1,016,936               

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 35,352,530             36,900,334             
Unrestricted 3,024,451               1,865,135               

Total net position 38,376,981$           38,765,469$           

June 30, 2024 and 2023
Statements of Net Position
Reclamation Project

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 
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2024 2023
OPERATING REVENUES

Water sales 2,917,115$             2,771,615$             
Fixed cost charge 1,420,215               4,057,757               

Total operating revenues 4,337,330               6,829,372               

OPERATING EXPENSES

Plant operating costs 2,208,891               2,173,588               
Distribution costs 421,262                  477,614                  
General and administrative 264,931                  245,973                  
Potable water purchases 3,535                      64,209                    
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District user fee 81,657                    85,385                    
Amortization 1,779,207               1,775,783               

Total operating expenses 4,759,483               4,822,552               

Operating income (loss) (422,153)                 2,006,820               

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Bond carrying costs -                              (3,000)                     
Interest expense - Pebble Beach Company (1,518)                     (90,694)                   
Investment earnings (loss) 35,301                    216                         
Other nonoperating expenses (118)                        -                              

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 33,665                    (93,478)                   

Changes in net position (388,488)                 1,913,342               

Net position, beginning of year 38,765,469             36,852,127             
Net position, end of year 38,376,981$           38,765,469$           

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Reclamation Project
Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
Reclamation Project 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
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Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 33,665 

Changes in net position (388,488) 

Net position, beginning of year 38,765,469 

Net position, end of year $ 38,376,981 

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 

15 

2023 

$ 2,771,615 
4,057,757 

6,829,372 

2,173,588 
477,614 
245,973 

64,209 
85,385 

1,775,783 

4,822,552 

2,006,820 

(3,000) 
(90,694) 

216 

(93,478) 

1,913,342 

36,852,127 

$ 38,765,469 

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
Reclamation Project 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

2024 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Water sales $ 2,917,115 
Fixed cost charge 1,420,215 

Total operating revenues 4,337,330 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Plant operating costs 2,208,891 
Distribution costs 421,262 
General and administrative 264,931 
Potable water purchases 3,535 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District user fee 81,657 
Amortization 1,779,207 

Total operating expenses 4,759,483 

Operating income (loss) (422,153) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Bond carrying costs 
Interest expense - Pebble Beach Company (1,518) 
Investment earnings (loss) 35,301 
Other nonoperating expenses (118) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 33,665 

Changes in net position (388,488) 

Net position, beginning of year 38,765,469 

Net position, end of year $ 38,376,981 

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 
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2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 4,772,632$             6,885,945$             
Payments for operating expenses (3,503,174)              (2,942,770)              

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,269,458               3,943,175               

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Other non-operating income/(expense) (118)                        -                              

Net cash (used in) noncapital financing activities (118)                        -                              

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal paid on bond debt -                              (2,600,000)              
Principal paid on Pebble Beach Company debt -                              (552,000)                 
Interest paid on long-term debt (1,518)                     (90,694)                   
Bond carrying costs -                              (3,000)                     
Additions to water resale rights (231,403)                 (971,539)                 

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (232,921)                 (4,217,233)              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received on investments 35,301                    216                         
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 50,000                    100,000                  
Purchase of investments (920,928)                 (193,251)                 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (835,627)                 (93,035)                   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 200,792                  (367,093)                 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,021,656               1,388,749               
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 1,222,448$             1,021,656$             

(Continued)

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023
Statements of Cash Flows
Reclamation Project

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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(Continued) 

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 
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(Continued) 

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 
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2024 2023

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (422,153)$               2,006,820$             
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Amortization 1,779,207               1,775,783               
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 435,302                  56,573                    
Deposits 3,650                      (872)                        

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (526,548)                 104,871                  

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,269,458$             3,943,175$             

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 11,622$                  (6,749)$                   

(Concluded)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Reclamation Project
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 
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Note 1 – Defining the Reporting Entity 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District Reclamation Project (the “Project”) 
is a cooperative effort involving the Carmel Area Wastewater District (“CAWD”), the Pebble Beach Community 
Services District (“PBCSD”), the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (“MPWMD”), and the Pebble Beach 
Company (“PBCo”). This cooperative effort did not create a new or separate legal entity. The Project is a proprietary 
(enterprise) fund of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, the issuer of the Certificates of Participation 
which financed the Project’s first construction project. 
 
The Project provides treated wastewater to irrigate golf courses and open space areas in the Pebble Beach community, 
which freed up potable water previously used for irrigation. The original Project involved the construction of a new 
tertiary treatment plant and laboratory facilities located on the site of the existing CAWD secondary wastewater 
treatment plant, the construction of a new reclaimed distribution system, including a 2.5-million-gallon storage tank, 
and irrigation system improvements. Construction of the original Project began in January 1993 and was completed in 
October 1994. The tertiary treatment plant produces water which meets Title 22 standards specified by the California 
Department of Health Services, which is a quality acceptable for human contact. 
 
The Project’s assets are owned principally by CAWD and PBCSD, and consist primarily of the following: 
 

 Assets owned by CAWD: (1) a tertiary treatment plant, (2) secondary process improvements, (3) laboratory 
facilities, (4) a reclaimed water pump station, (5) related computer equipment, and (6) a small portion of the 
reclaimed water pipeline. 

 Assets owned by PBCSD: (1) approximately seven miles of reclaimed water distribution system pipeline, (2) 
the Forest Lake Reservoir, (3) a 2.5-million-gallon storage tank, and (4) a potable water pump station. 

 
The original Project was financed by Certificates of Participation (“COP”), which were executed and delivered at the 
direction of MPWMD in December 1992 in the amount of $33,900,000. MPWMD provided the funds necessary to 
construct and operate the Project and then obtained ownership of the reclaimed water for the purpose of resale. PBCo 
guaranteed payment of construction costs of the reclamation project as well as any operating deficiencies. The debt 
obligations incurred by MPWMD to finance the construction project constitute limited obligations of MPWMD, 
payable solely from the net operating revenue generated by the sale of reclaimed water produced by the Project and, if 
such reclaimed water revenue is insufficient, then from payments through a Bond Letter of Credit provided by Wells 
Fargo Bank (the credit bank) through a reimbursement agreement between PBCo and the credit bank. PBCo pays the 
letter of credit fees, as well as principal and interest payments on debt obligations as needed, as a subsidy to the Project, 
with reimbursement as cash flow permits. 
 
The activities of the Project are overseen by a six-member management committee containing two representatives from 
the CAWD board, two from the PBCSD board, one from the PBCo, and one from the Independent Reclaimed Water 
Users Group (“IRWUG”). Since the Project does not own the wastewater reclamation capital assets, the value earned 
for the capital expenditures incurred is reflected on the books of the Project as water resale rights, an intangible 
amortizable capital asset. 
 
Subsequent to the completion of the original facilities, the Project has been expanded to increase the quantity and quality 
of reclaimed water. The expanded project utilizes the Forest Lake Reservoir located in Pebble Beach, which provides 
up to 115 million gallons of storage capacity. The Reservoir is filled with reclaimed water during winter months when 
there is excess production at the treatment plant. The stored water is used during summer months when the daily 
irrigation demand exceeds treatment plant production capacity. In 1998, PBCSD purchased the Reservoir from the 
California-American Water Company. 

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
Reclamation Project 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 1 - Defining the Reporting Entity 

Reporting Entity 

The Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District Reclamation Project (the "Project") 
is a cooperative effort involving the Carmel Area Wastewater District ("CAWD"), the Pebble Beach Community 
Services District ("PBCSD"), the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District ("MPWMD"), and the Pebble Beach 
Company ("PBC0"). This cooperative effort did not create a new or separate legal entity. The Project is a proprietary 
(enterprise) fund of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, the issuer of the Certificates of Participation 
which financed the Project's  first construction project. 

The Project provides treated wastewater to irrigate golf courses and open space areas in the Pebble Beach community, 
which freed up potable water previously used for irrigation. The original Project involved the construction of a new 
tertiary treatment plant and laboratory facilities located on the site of the existing CAWD secondary wastewater 
treatment plant, the construction of a new reclaimed distribution system, including a 2.5-million-gallon storage tank, 
and irrigation system improvements. Construction of the original Project began in January 1 993 and was completed in 
October 1994. The tertiary treatment plant produces water which meets Title 22 standards specified by the California 
Department of Health Services, which is a quality acceptable for human contact. 

The Project' s assets are owned principally by CAWD and PBCSD, and consist primarily of the following: 

• Assets owned by CAWD: ( 1 )  a tertiary treatment plant, (2) secondary process improvements, (3) laboratory 
facilities, (4) a reclaimed water pump station, (5) related computer equipment, and (6) a small portion of the 
reclaimed water pipeline. 

• Assets owned by PBCSD: ( 1 )  approximately seven miles of reclaimed water distribution system pipeline, (2) 
the Forest Lake Reservoir, (3) a 2 .5-million-gallon storage tank, and (4) a potable water pump station. 

The original Project was financed by Certificates of Participation ("COP"), which were executed and delivered at the 
direction of MPWMD in December 1992 in the amount of $33,900,000. MPWMD provided the funds necessary to 
construct and operate the Project and then obtained ownership of the reclaimed water for the purpose of resale. PBCo 
guaranteed payment of construction costs of the reclamation project as well as any operating deficiencies. The debt 
obligations incurred by MPWMD to finance the construction project constitute limited obligations of MPWMD, 
payable solely from the net operating revenue generated by the sale of reclaimed water produced by the Project and, if 
such reclaimed water revenue is insufficient, then from payments through a Bond Letter of Credit provided by Wells 
Fargo Bank (the credit bank) through a reimbursement agreement between PBCo and the credit bank. PBCo pays the 
letter of credit fees, as well as principal and interest payments on debt obligations as needed, as a subsidy to the Project, 
with reimbursement as cash flow permits. 

The activities of the Project are overseen by a six-member management committee containing two representatives from 
the CAWD board, two from the PBCSD board, one from the PBCo, and one from the Independent Reclaimed Water 
Users Group ("IRWUG"). Since the Project does not own the wastewater reclamation capital assets, the value earned 
for the capital expenditures incurred is reflected on the books of the Project as water resale rights, an intangible 
amortizable capital asset. 

Subsequent to the completion of the original facilities, the Project has been expanded to increase the quantity and quality 
of reclaimed water. The expanded project utilizes the Forest Lake Reservoir located in Pebble Beach, which provides 
up to 1 1 5 million gallons of storage capacity. The Reservoir is filled with reclaimed water during winter months when 
there is excess production at the treatment plant. The stored water is used during summer months when the daily 
irrigation demand exceeds treatment plant production capacity. In 1 998, PBCSD purchased the Reservoir from the 
California-American Water Company. 
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Note 1 - Defining the Reporting Entity 

Reporting Entity 

The Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District Reclamation Project (the "Project") 
is a cooperative effort involving the Carmel Area Wastewater District ("CAWD"), the Pebble Beach Community 
Services District ("PBCSD"), the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District ("MPWMD"), and the Pebble Beach 
Company ("PBC0"). This cooperative effort did not create a new or separate legal entity. The Project is a proprietary 
(enterprise) fund of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, the issuer of the Certificates of Participation 
which financed the Project's  first construction project. 

The Project provides treated wastewater to irrigate golf courses and open space areas in the Pebble Beach community, 
which freed up potable water previously used for irrigation. The original Project involved the construction of a new 
tertiary treatment plant and laboratory facilities located on the site of the existing CAWD secondary wastewater 
treatment plant, the construction of a new reclaimed distribution system, including a 2.5-million-gallon storage tank, 
and irrigation system improvements. Construction of the original Project began in January 1 993 and was completed in 
October 1994. The tertiary treatment plant produces water which meets Title 22 standards specified by the California 
Department of Health Services, which is a quality acceptable for human contact. 

The Project' s assets are owned principally by CAWD and PBCSD, and consist primarily of the following: 

• Assets owned by CAWD: ( 1 )  a tertiary treatment plant, (2) secondary process improvements, (3) laboratory 
facilities, (4) a reclaimed water pump station, (5) related computer equipment, and (6) a small portion of the 
reclaimed water pipeline. 

• Assets owned by PBCSD: ( 1 )  approximately seven miles of reclaimed water distribution system pipeline, (2) 
the Forest Lake Reservoir, (3) a 2 .5-million-gallon storage tank, and (4) a potable water pump station. 

The original Project was financed by Certificates of Participation ("COP"), which were executed and delivered at the 
direction of MPWMD in December 1992 in the amount of $33,900,000. MPWMD provided the funds necessary to 
construct and operate the Project and then obtained ownership of the reclaimed water for the purpose of resale. PBCo 
guaranteed payment of construction costs of the reclamation project as well as any operating deficiencies. The debt 
obligations incurred by MPWMD to finance the construction project constitute limited obligations of MPWMD, 
payable solely from the net operating revenue generated by the sale of reclaimed water produced by the Project and, if 
such reclaimed water revenue is insufficient, then from payments through a Bond Letter of Credit provided by Wells 
Fargo Bank (the credit bank) through a reimbursement agreement between PBCo and the credit bank. PBCo pays the 
letter of credit fees, as well as principal and interest payments on debt obligations as needed, as a subsidy to the Project, 
with reimbursement as cash flow permits. 

The activities of the Project are overseen by a six-member management committee containing two representatives from 
the CAWD board, two from the PBCSD board, one from the PBCo, and one from the Independent Reclaimed Water 
Users Group ("IRWUG"). Since the Project does not own the wastewater reclamation capital assets, the value earned 
for the capital expenditures incurred is reflected on the books of the Project as water resale rights, an intangible 
amortizable capital asset. 

Subsequent to the completion of the original facilities, the Project has been expanded to increase the quantity and quality 
of reclaimed water. The expanded project utilizes the Forest Lake Reservoir located in Pebble Beach, which provides 
up to 1 1 5 million gallons of storage capacity. The Reservoir is filled with reclaimed water during winter months when 
there is excess production at the treatment plant. The stored water is used during summer months when the daily 
irrigation demand exceeds treatment plant production capacity. In 1 998, PBCSD purchased the Reservoir from the 
California-American Water Company. 
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Note 1 – Defining the Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Rehabilitation and reservoir expansion was completed in 2009 in accordance with State Water Resources Division of 
Safety of Dams requirements. Construction costs of $13,052,530 were financed by the sale of Pebble Beach Company 
water entitlements. 
 
The Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis (“MF/RO”) phase of the project (phase II), located at the CAWD treatment plant 
site, began in 2006 and was completed in 2009. The intent of the MF/RO phase is to reduce the sodium content of the 
tertiary reclaimed water from 150 mg/l to less than 55 mg/l, to reduce the stress on the golf greens and eliminate the 
need for flushing the courses with potable water. The design capacity for the MF/RO is 1.5 million gallons with an 
expected blend of 80% RO water and 20% MF water. The total cost of the MF/RO project was $21,379,792, which was 
financed through the sale of water entitlements owned by PBCo to residential property owners within the Pebble Beach 
community. 
 
The following is a brief description of each of the participants involved in the Project: 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District - CAWD (formerly the Carmel Sanitary District) was formed in 1908 to service 
the community of Carmel-by-the-Sea and is one of the oldest sanitary districts in the State. In 1934, CAWD was 
reorganized under the Health and Safety Code Sanitary District Act of 1923. In 1939 work began on the construction 
of a primary treatment plant. The primary treatment plant was built at the site of the current Wastewater Treatment 
Facility and had a design capacity of 0.8 million gallons per day (MGD). The primary treatment plant was the first 
sewage treatment plant on the Monterey Peninsula. Current permit capacity is 3.0 MGD. CAWD also provides 
treatment and disposal services to PBCSD, which owns one-third of the “capacity” of CAWD’s treatment facility. 
CAWD is an independent government entity operating under authority of the Health and Safety Code of the State of 
California, and is governed by its own five-member Board of Directors who are elected for terms of four years  each. 
 
Pebble Beach Community Services District - PBCSD provides wastewater collection and treatment; fire protection 
and emergency medical; supplemental law enforcement; garbage and recycling collection; reclaimed water distribution 
services; and undergrounding of overhead utilities within Pebble Beach. It was organized on July 1, 1982 under the 
Community Service District Act (Section 61000 et seq. Government Code). PBCSD is governed by a five-member 
Board of Directors who are elected at large for a four-year term and who must be residents of the District. PBCSD owns 
and operates its wastewater collection system and contracts with CAWD for wastewater treatment and disposal. The 
District provides fire protection and emergency medical services through a contract with the California Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection (“CAL FIRE”), supplemental law enforcement services through a contract with California 
Highway Patrol, and garbage and recycling collection services through a contract with Green Waste Recovery Inc. 
 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District - MPWMD is a special district created by the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District Act, Statutes of 1977, Chapter 527, to provide regional water supply planning within a 170 
square mile area consisting primarily of the Monterey Peninsula and Carmel Valley, California. Within MPWMD’s 
boundaries are the incorporated cities of Carmel-by-the- Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Sand City and 
Seaside, in addition to portions of unincorporated Monterey County. The District is empowered to manage and regulate 
the use, reuse, reclamation, conservation, storage, distribution, treatment, and disposal of water and wastewater within 
its jurisdiction. MPWMD is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors, five elected at large and two appointed. 
The District’s revenue is derived from property taxes, user fees, and connection  charges. 
 
The District’s stated goals and objectives are to: (1) augment the water supply, (2) prevent degradation of resources, 
(3) optimize the production capability of present resources, (4) manage water demand, (5) promote water reclamation, 
and (6) promote water conservation and education regarding water issues. All tertiary treated water produced by the 
Project is owned by MPWMD. 
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Note 1 - Defining the Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Rehabilitation and reservoir expansion was completed in 2009 in accordance with State Water Resources Division of 
Safety of Dams requirements. Construction costs of $ 13 ,052,530 were financed by the sale of Pebble Beach Company 
water entitlements. 

The Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis ("MF/RO") phase of the project (phase II), located at the CAWD treatment plant 
site, began in 2006 and was completed in 2009. The intent of the MF/RO phase is to reduce the sodium content of the 
tertiary reclaimed water from 1 50 mg/1 to less than 55 mg/1, to reduce the stress on the golf greens and eliminate the 
need for flushing the courses with potable water. The design capacity for the MF/RO is 1 .5 million gallons with an 
expected blend of 80% RO water and 20% MF water. The total cost of the MF/RO project was $2 1 ,379,792, which was 
financed through the sale of water entitlements owned by PBCo to residential property owners within the Pebble Beach 
community. 

The following is a brief description of each of the participants involved in the Project: 

Carmel Area Wastewater District - CAWD (formerly the Carmel Sanitary District) was formed in 1 908 to service 
the community of Carmel-by-the-Sea and is one of the oldest sanitary districts in the State. In 1 934, CAWD was 
reorganized under the Health and Safety Code Sanitary District Act of 1 923.  In 1939 work began on the construction 
of a primary treatment plant. The primary treatment plant was built at the site of the current Wastewater Treatment 
Facility and had a design capacity of 0.8 million gallons per day (MGD). The primary treatment plant was the first 
sewage treatment plant on the Monterey Peninsula. Current permit capacity is 3 .0  MGD. CAWD also provides 
treatment and disposal services to PBCSD, which owns one-third of the "capacity" of CAWD's treatment facility. 
CAWD is an independent government entity operating under authority of the Health and Safety Code of the State of 
California, and is governed by its own five-member Board of Directors who are elected for terms of four years each. 

Pebble Beach Community Services District - PBCSD provides wastewater collection and treatment; fire protection 
and emergency medical; supplemental law enforcement; garbage and recycling collection; reclaimed water distribution 
services; and undergrounding of overhead utilities within Pebble Beach. It was organized on July 1 ,  1 982 under the 
Community Service District Act (Section 6 1 000 et seq. Government Code). PBCSD is governed by a five-member 
Board of Directors who are elected at large for a four-year term and who must be residents of the District. PBCSD owns 
and operates its wastewater collection system and contracts with CAWD for wastewater treatment and disposal. The 
District provides fire protection and emergency medical services through a contract with the California Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection ("CAL FIRE"), supplemental law enforcement services through a contract with California 
Highway Patrol, and garbage and recycling collection services through a contract with Green Waste Recovery Inc. 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District - MPWMD is a special district created by the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District Act, Statutes of 1 977, Chapter 527, to provide regional water supply planning within a 1 70 
square mile area consisting primarily of the Monterey Peninsula and Carmel Valley, California. Within MPWMD's  
boundaries are the incorporated cities of  Carmel-by-the- Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Sand City and 
Seaside, in addition to portions of unincorporated Monterey County. The District is empowered to manage and regulate 
the use, reuse, reclamation, conservation, storage, distribution, treatment, and disposal of water and wastewater within 
its jurisdiction. MPWMD is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors, five elected at large and two appointed. 
The District' s revenue is derived from property taxes, user fees, and connection charges. 

The District' s stated goals and objectives are to: ( 1 )  augment the water supply, (2) prevent degradation of resources, 
(3) optimize the production capability of present resources, (4) manage water demand, (5) promote water reclamation, 
and (6) promote water conservation and education regarding water issues. All tertiary treated water produced by the 
Project is owned by MPWMD. 
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Note 1 - Defining the Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Rehabilitation and reservoir expansion was completed in 2009 in accordance with State Water Resources Division of 
Safety of Dams requirements. Construction costs of $ 13 ,052,530 were financed by the sale of Pebble Beach Company 
water entitlements. 

The Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis ("MF/RO") phase of the project (phase II), located at the CAWD treatment plant 
site, began in 2006 and was completed in 2009. The intent of the MF/RO phase is to reduce the sodium content of the 
tertiary reclaimed water from 1 50 mg/1 to less than 55 mg/1, to reduce the stress on the golf greens and eliminate the 
need for flushing the courses with potable water. The design capacity for the MF/RO is 1 .5 million gallons with an 
expected blend of 80% RO water and 20% MF water. The total cost of the MF/RO project was $2 1 ,379,792, which was 
financed through the sale of water entitlements owned by PBCo to residential property owners within the Pebble Beach 
community. 

The following is a brief description of each of the participants involved in the Project: 

Carmel Area Wastewater District - CAWD (formerly the Carmel Sanitary District) was formed in 1 908 to service 
the community of Carmel-by-the-Sea and is one of the oldest sanitary districts in the State. In 1 934, CAWD was 
reorganized under the Health and Safety Code Sanitary District Act of 1 923.  In 1939 work began on the construction 
of a primary treatment plant. The primary treatment plant was built at the site of the current Wastewater Treatment 
Facility and had a design capacity of 0.8 million gallons per day (MGD). The primary treatment plant was the first 
sewage treatment plant on the Monterey Peninsula. Current permit capacity is 3 .0  MGD. CAWD also provides 
treatment and disposal services to PBCSD, which owns one-third of the "capacity" of CAWD's treatment facility. 
CAWD is an independent government entity operating under authority of the Health and Safety Code of the State of 
California, and is governed by its own five-member Board of Directors who are elected for terms of four years each. 

Pebble Beach Community Services District - PBCSD provides wastewater collection and treatment; fire protection 
and emergency medical; supplemental law enforcement; garbage and recycling collection; reclaimed water distribution 
services; and undergrounding of overhead utilities within Pebble Beach. It was organized on July 1 ,  1 982 under the 
Community Service District Act (Section 6 1 000 et seq. Government Code). PBCSD is governed by a five-member 
Board of Directors who are elected at large for a four-year term and who must be residents of the District. PBCSD owns 
and operates its wastewater collection system and contracts with CAWD for wastewater treatment and disposal. The 
District provides fire protection and emergency medical services through a contract with the California Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection ("CAL FIRE"), supplemental law enforcement services through a contract with California 
Highway Patrol, and garbage and recycling collection services through a contract with Green Waste Recovery Inc. 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District - MPWMD is a special district created by the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District Act, Statutes of 1 977, Chapter 527, to provide regional water supply planning within a 1 70 
square mile area consisting primarily of the Monterey Peninsula and Carmel Valley, California. Within MPWMD's  
boundaries are the incorporated cities of  Carmel-by-the- Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Sand City and 
Seaside, in addition to portions of unincorporated Monterey County. The District is empowered to manage and regulate 
the use, reuse, reclamation, conservation, storage, distribution, treatment, and disposal of water and wastewater within 
its jurisdiction. MPWMD is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors, five elected at large and two appointed. 
The District' s revenue is derived from property taxes, user fees, and connection charges. 

The District' s stated goals and objectives are to: ( 1 )  augment the water supply, (2) prevent degradation of resources, 
(3) optimize the production capability of present resources, (4) manage water demand, (5) promote water reclamation, 
and (6) promote water conservation and education regarding water issues. All tertiary treated water produced by the 
Project is owned by MPWMD. 
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Note 1 – Defining the Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Pebble Beach Company - Lone Cypress Company LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company” or 
“Lone Cypress”) and its two wholly owned subsidiaries, Cypress I LLC and Cypress II LLC (“Cypress I” and “Cypress 
II” are the general partners), were formed in June 1999 for the purpose of acquiring the partnership interest in the Pebble 
Beach Company (“PBCo”) on July 30, 1999, the date of acquisition. Substantially all the operations are conducted 
through PBCo, a California general partnership. PBCo generates the majority of its revenue through the ownership and 
operation of resort hotels, four golf courses, a full-service spa, restaurants, retail outlets, a beach and tennis club, an 
athletic club, certain properties leased to others, and the scenic route known as “17-Mile Drive.” In addition, PBCo 
owns land held for development of residential and commercial real estate. 
 
Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group (“IRWUG”) - IRWUG represents and includes members from the 
Cypress Point Golf Course, Poppy Hills Golf Course, and the Monterey Peninsula Country Club. 
 
 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
A. Accounting Policies   

 
The accounting policies of the Project conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“U.S. GAAP”) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) as applicable to 
governments. The Project is an enterprise (proprietary) fund of MPWMD. 

 
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation 
 

“Measurement focus” is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements. “Basis of accounting” refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus 
applied. The accompanying financial statements are reported using the “economic resources measurement focus,” 
and the “accrual basis of accounting.” Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are 
included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
As a proprietary fund, the Project utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenue is recognized 
in the accounting period in which it is earned, and expenses are recognized in the accounting period in which the 
liability is incurred. Operating revenue comes from sales of reclaimed water. When both restricted and unrestricted 
resources are available for use, the Project uses restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources. The Project 
distinguishes operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenue and expenses generally 
result from producing and delivering reclaimed water. Operating expenses include the cost of sales, general and 
administrative expenses, and amortization of capital assets and water resale rights. All revenue and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses. 
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Note 1 - Defining the Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Pebble Beach Company - Lone Cypress Company LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Company" or 

"Lone Cypress") and its two wholly owned subsidiaries, Cypress I LLC and Cypress II LLC ("Cypress I" and "Cypress 

II" are the general partners), were formed in June 1 999 for the purpose of acquiring the partnership interest in the Pebble 
Beach Company ("PBCo") on July 30, 1 999, the date of acquisition. Substantially all the operations are conducted 

through PBCo, a California general partnership. PBCo generates the majority of its revenue through the ownership and 

operation of resort hotels, four golf courses, a full-service spa, restaurants, retail outlets, a beach and tennis club, an 
athletic club, certain properties leased to others, and the scenic route known as " 1 7-Mile Drive." In addition, PBCo 

owns land held for development of residential and commercial real estate. 

Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group ("IRWUG") - IRWUG represents and includes members from the 
Cypress Point Golf Course, Poppy Hills Golf Course, and the Monterey Peninsula Country Club. 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the Project conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America ("U.S. GAAP") as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") as applicable to 
governments. The Project is an enterprise (proprietary) fund of MPWMD. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation 

"Measurement focus" is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial 

statements. "Basis of accounting" refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus 

applied. The accompanying financial statements are reported using the "economic resources measurement focus," 
and the "accrual basis of accounting." Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are 
included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Revenues are recorded when earned 

and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

As a proprietary fund, the Project utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenue is recognized 

in the accounting period in which it is earned, and expenses are recognized in the accounting period in which the 
liability is incurred. Operating revenue comes from sales of reclaimed water. When both restricted and unrestricted 

resources are available for use, the Project uses restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources. The Project 

distinguishes operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenue and expenses generally 

result from producing and delivering reclaimed water. Operating expenses include the cost of sales, general and 
administrative expenses, and amortization of capital assets and water resale rights. All revenue and expenses not 

meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses. 
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 1 - Defining the Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Pebble Beach Company - Lone Cypress Company LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Company" or 

"Lone Cypress") and its two wholly owned subsidiaries, Cypress I LLC and Cypress II LLC ("Cypress I" and "Cypress 

II" are the general partners), were formed in June 1 999 for the purpose of acquiring the partnership interest in the Pebble 
Beach Company ("PBCo") on July 30, 1 999, the date of acquisition. Substantially all the operations are conducted 

through PBCo, a California general partnership. PBCo generates the majority of its revenue through the ownership and 

operation of resort hotels, four golf courses, a full-service spa, restaurants, retail outlets, a beach and tennis club, an 
athletic club, certain properties leased to others, and the scenic route known as " 1 7-Mile Drive." In addition, PBCo 

owns land held for development of residential and commercial real estate. 

Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group ("IRWUG") - IRWUG represents and includes members from the 
Cypress Point Golf Course, Poppy Hills Golf Course, and the Monterey Peninsula Country Club. 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the Project conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America ("U.S. GAAP") as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") as applicable to 
governments. The Project is an enterprise (proprietary) fund of MPWMD. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation 

"Measurement focus" is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial 

statements. "Basis of accounting" refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus 

applied. The accompanying financial statements are reported using the "economic resources measurement focus," 
and the "accrual basis of accounting." Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are 
included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Revenues are recorded when earned 

and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

As a proprietary fund, the Project utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenue is recognized 

in the accounting period in which it is earned, and expenses are recognized in the accounting period in which the 
liability is incurred. Operating revenue comes from sales of reclaimed water. When both restricted and unrestricted 

resources are available for use, the Project uses restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources. The Project 

distinguishes operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenue and expenses generally 

result from producing and delivering reclaimed water. Operating expenses include the cost of sales, general and 
administrative expenses, and amortization of capital assets and water resale rights. All revenue and expenses not 

meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
C. Cash and Cash Equivalents  

 
The Project considers all highly liquid assets purchased with an original term to maturity of ninety days or less to 
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are reported as “cash and investments” on the financial statement. 
 
Risk Disclosures – Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable for deposit and investment risk, are specified for 
the following areas:  
 

 Interest Rate Risk  
 Credit Risk  
 Overall  
 Custodial Credit Risk  
 Concentration of Credit Risk  

 
Investment Valuation – GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and establishes disclosures about fair value measurement. 
Investments, unless otherwise specified, recorded at fair value in the Statements of Net Position, are categorized 
based upon the level of judgement associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Levels of inputs are 
as follows: 
 
Level 1 - Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets at the measurement 
date. 
 
Level 2 - Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability through 
corroboration with market data at the measurement date. 
 
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect management's best estimate of what market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

 
D. Restricted Assets  

 
Certain cash accounts of the Project are classified as restricted because their uses are limited by commitments made 
by the Project to the purchasers of its Certificates of Participation (bonds). When applicable, construction projects 
cash is an escrowed account for receipt of water entitlement sales by PBCo, who is entitled to reimbursement for 
its cash advances. 
 
Sometimes the Project will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant 
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position and 
unrestricted - net position in the Statement of Net Position, a flow assumption must be made about the order in 
which the resources are considered to be applied. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Project’s policy to use restricted 
resources first and then unrestricted resources, as necessary. 

 
E. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts  

 
Accounts receivable are accounted for using the allowance method. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $-0- 
at June 30, 2024 and 2023.  

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
Reclamation Project 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Project considers all highly liquid assets purchased with an original term to maturity of ninety days or less to 
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are reported as "cash and investments" on the financial statement. 

Risk Disclosures - Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable for deposit and investment risk, are specified for 
the following areas : 

• Interest Rate Risk 

• Credit Risk 

• Overall 

• Custodial Credit Risk 

• Concentration of Credit Risk 

Investment Valuation - GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and establishes disclosures about fair value measurement. 
Investments, unless otherwise specified, recorded at fair value in the Statements of Net Position, are categorized 
based upon the level of judgement associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Levels of inputs are 
as follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets at the measurement 
date. 

Level 2 - Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1 ,  that are observable for the asset or liability through 
corroboration with market data at the measurement date. 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect management's best estimate of what market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

D. Restricted Assets 

Certain cash accounts of the Project are classified as restricted because their uses are limited by commitments made 
by the Project to the purchasers of its Certificates of Participation (bonds). When applicable, construction projects 
cash is an escrowed account for receipt of water entitlement sales by PBCo, who is entitled to reimbursement for 
its cash advances. 

Sometimes the Project will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant 
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and 
unrestricted - net position in the Statement of Net Position, a flow assumption must be made about the order in 
which the resources are considered to be applied. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Project' s policy to use restricted 
resources first and then unrestricted resources, as necessary. 

E. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts receivable are accounted for using the allowance method. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $-O­
at June 30, 2024 and 2023 . 
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Project considers all highly liquid assets purchased with an original term to maturity of ninety days or less to 
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are reported as "cash and investments" on the financial statement. 

Risk Disclosures - Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable for deposit and investment risk, are specified for 
the following areas : 

• Interest Rate Risk 

• Credit Risk 

• Overall 

• Custodial Credit Risk 

• Concentration of Credit Risk 

Investment Valuation - GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and establishes disclosures about fair value measurement. 
Investments, unless otherwise specified, recorded at fair value in the Statements of Net Position, are categorized 
based upon the level of judgement associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Levels of inputs are 
as follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets at the measurement 
date. 

Level 2 - Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1 ,  that are observable for the asset or liability through 
corroboration with market data at the measurement date. 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect management's best estimate of what market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

D. Restricted Assets 

Certain cash accounts of the Project are classified as restricted because their uses are limited by commitments made 
by the Project to the purchasers of its Certificates of Participation (bonds). When applicable, construction projects 
cash is an escrowed account for receipt of water entitlement sales by PBCo, who is entitled to reimbursement for 
its cash advances. 

Sometimes the Project will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant 
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and 
unrestricted - net position in the Statement of Net Position, a flow assumption must be made about the order in 
which the resources are considered to be applied. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Project' s policy to use restricted 
resources first and then unrestricted resources, as necessary. 

E. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts receivable are accounted for using the allowance method. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $-O­
at June 30, 2024 and 2023 . 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
F. Amortization  

 
The water resale rights are amortized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of the reclamation 
plant, which is forty years, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 60, Intangible Assets, which specifies that an 
intangible asset shall be amortized over its useful life, unless that life is determined to be indefinite. 

 
G. Net Position  

 
Net position of the Project is classified into three components: (1) net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted net 
position, and (3) unrestricted net position. These classifications are defined as follows:  
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation plus deferred amounts on refunding, and reduced by the outstanding balances of notes or borrowing 
that are attributable to the acquisition of the asset, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are 
significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds 
are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. 
 
Restricted Net Position – This component of net position consists of net position with constrained use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.  
 
Unrestricted Net Position – This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition 
of “net investment in capital assets,” or “restricted net position”. 

 
H. Use of Estimates  

 
Preparing the Project’s financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
I. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements for the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Project implemented the following new GASB Pronouncement: 

 
 In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections – an Amendment 

of GASB Statement No. 62. The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial 
reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, 
relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. Application 
of this statement did not have an effect on the Project’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. 

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

F. Amortization 

The water resale rights are amortized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of the reclamation 

plant, which is forty years, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 60, Intangible Assets, which specifies that an 

intangible asset shall be amortized over its useful life, unless that life is determined to be indefinite. 

G. Net Position 

Net position of the Project is classified into three components : ( 1 )  net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted net 

position, and (3) unrestricted net position. These classifications are defined as follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation plus deferred amounts on refunding, and reduced by the outstanding balances of notes or borrowing 

that are attributable to the acquisition of the asset, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are 

significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds 
are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. 

Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position with constrained use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 

regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 

legislation. 

Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition 

of "net investment in capital assets," or "restricted net position". 

H. Use of Estimates 

Preparing the Project's  financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 

reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

I. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements for the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Project implemented the following new GASB Pronouncement: 

• In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 1 00, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an Amendment 
of GASE Statement No. 62. The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial 

reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, 

relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. Application 
of this statement did not have an effect on the Project's fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

F. Amortization 

The water resale rights are amortized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of the reclamation 

plant, which is forty years, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 60, Intangible Assets, which specifies that an 

intangible asset shall be amortized over its useful life, unless that life is determined to be indefinite. 

G. Net Position 

Net position of the Project is classified into three components : ( 1 )  net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted net 

position, and (3) unrestricted net position. These classifications are defined as follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation plus deferred amounts on refunding, and reduced by the outstanding balances of notes or borrowing 

that are attributable to the acquisition of the asset, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are 

significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds 
are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. 

Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position with constrained use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 

regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 

legislation. 

Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition 

of "net investment in capital assets," or "restricted net position". 

H. Use of Estimates 

Preparing the Project's  financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 

reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

I. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements for the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Project implemented the following new GASB Pronouncement: 

• In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 1 00, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an Amendment 
of GASE Statement No. 62. The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial 

reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, 

relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. Application 
of this statement did not have an effect on the Project's fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. 
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments 
 
Cash and investments at June 30, 2024 and 2023 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:  
 

2024 2023
Statement of Net Position:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,222,448$             1,021,656$             
Investments 1,230,736               359,808                  

Total cash and investments 2,453,184$             1,381,464$             

Cash and investments consist of the following:
Deposits with financial institutions:

Checking accounts 1,105,269$             893,676$                
Money market accounts 35,777 126,609                  
Mutual funds 80,000 -                             

Monterey County Investment Pool 1,402 1,371                      
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,230,736 359,808                  

Total cash and investments 2,453,184$             1,381,464$             
 

 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, $1,346,513 and $486,717, respectively, of the total is set aside for capital replacement. 
 
Demand Deposits 

 
As of June 30, 2024, the carrying amount of demand deposits was $1,105,269 and the bank balance was $1,132,331 
compared to $893,676 and $1,071,063 at June 30, 2023, of which the total amount was collateralized or insured with 
securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the Project’s name as discussed below under Disclosures Relating 
Custodial Credit Risk.  
 
Investments Authorized by the Project’s Investment Policy 
 
The Project does not have a specific investment policy; therefore, it is required to follow the guidelines of California 
Code Section 53900, et. seq. 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. One of the ways that the Project manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination 
of shorter term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio 
is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project’s investments by maturity.  
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 3 - Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments at June 30, 2024 and 2023 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position: 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Total cash and investments 

Cash and investments consist of the following: 

Deposits with financial institutions : 

Checking accounts 

Money market accounts 

Mutual funds 

M onterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Total cash and investments 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2024 

1 ,222,448 $ 

1 ,230,736 

2,453 , 1 84 $ 

2023 

1 ,02 1 ,656 

359,808 

1 , 38 1 ,464 
======= 

1 , 1 05,269 $ 893,676 

35.777 126,609 

80,000 

1 ,402 1 , 37 1  

1 ,230,736 359,808 

2,453 , 1 84 $ 1 , 3 8 1 ,464 

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, $ 1 ,346,5 1 3  and $486,7 1 7, respectively, of the total is set aside for capital replacement. 

Demand Deposits 

As of June 30, 2024, the carrying amount of demand deposits was $ 1 , 1 05,269 and the bank balance was $ 1 , 1 32,3 3 1  
compared to $893,676 and $ 1 ,07 1 ,063 at June 30, 2023, of which the total amount was collateralized or insured with 
securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the Project's  name as discussed below under Disclosures Relating 

Custodial Credit Risk. 

Investments Authorized by the Project's Investment Policy 

The Project does not have a specific investment policy; therefore, it is required to follow the guidelines of California 
Code Section 53900, et. seq. 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. One of the ways that the Project manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination 
of shorter term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio 
is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project's investments by maturity. 
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments at June 30, 2024 and 2023 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position: 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Total cash and investments 

Cash and investments consist of the following: 

Deposits with financial institutions : 

Checking accounts 

Money market accounts 

Mutual funds 

M onterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Total cash and investments 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2024 

1 ,222,448 $ 

1 ,230,736 

2,453 , 1 84 $ 

2023 

1 ,02 1 ,656 

359,808 

1 , 38 1 ,464 
======= 

1 , 1 05,269 $ 893,676 

35.777 126,609 

80,000 

1 ,402 1 , 37 1  

1 ,230,736 359,808 

2,453 , 1 84 $ 1 , 3 8 1 ,464 

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, $ 1 ,346,5 1 3  and $486,7 1 7, respectively, of the total is set aside for capital replacement. 

Demand Deposits 

As of June 30, 2024, the carrying amount of demand deposits was $ 1 , 1 05,269 and the bank balance was $ 1 , 1 32,3 3 1  
compared to $893,676 and $ 1 ,07 1 ,063 at June 30, 2023, of which the total amount was collateralized or insured with 
securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the Project's  name as discussed below under Disclosures Relating 

Custodial Credit Risk. 

Investments Authorized by the Project's Investment Policy 

The Project does not have a specific investment policy; therefore, it is required to follow the guidelines of California 
Code Section 53900, et. seq. 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. One of the ways that the Project manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination 
of shorter term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio 
is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project's investments by maturity. 

28 



Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District  
Reclamation Project 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 

29 

Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project’s investments by maturity at June 30, 2024.  
 

Investment Type Total 12 Months or Less 13 to 24 Months

Monterey County Investment Pool 1,402$                    1,402$                    -$                           
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,230,736               -                             1,230,736               
Money market accounts 35,777                    35,777                    -                             
Mutual funds 80,000                    80,000                    -                             

Total 1,347,915$             117,179$                1,230,736$             

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

 
 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project’s investments by maturity at June 30, 2023.  

 

Investment Type Total 12 Months or Less 13 to 24 Months

Monterey County Investment Pool 1,371$                    1,371$                    -$                           
Negotiable certificates of deposit 359,808                  -                             359,808                  
Money market accounts 126,609                  126,609                  -                             

Total 487,788$                127,980$                359,808$                

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

 
 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
The County Pool does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
 
The Project’s investments were rated according to the following table at June 30, 2024:  
 

Investment Type Total
Minimum Legal 

Rating Not Rated

Monterey County Investment Pool 1,402$                    N/A 1,402$                    
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,230,736               N/A 1,230,736               
Money market accounts 35,777                    N/A 35,777                    
Mutual funds 80,000                    N/A 80,000                    

Total 1,347,915$             1,347,915$             
 

 
The Project’s investments were rated according to the following table at June 30, 2023:  
 

Investment Type Total
Minimum Legal 

Rating Not Rated

Monterey County Investment Pool 1,371$                    N/A 1,371$                    
Negotiable certificates of deposit 359,808                  N/A 359,808                  
Money market accounts 126,609                  N/A 126,609                  

Total 487,788$                487,788$                
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project's  investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 

provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project' s  investments by maturity at June 30, 2024. 

Investment Type 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market accounts 

Mutual funds 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1 ,402 

1 ,230,736 

35,777 

80,000 

1 ,347,9 1 5  

Remaining Maturity (in Months) 

1 2  Months or Less 13 to 24 Months 

$ 1 ,402 $ 

1 ,230,736 

35,777 

80,000 

$ 1 1 7 , 1 79 $ 1 ,230,736 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 

provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project' s  investments by maturity at June 30, 2023.  

Remaining M aturity (in Months) 

Investment Type 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market accounts 

Total 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1 ,37 1  

359,808 

126,609 

487,788 

12 Months or Less 13 to 24 Months 

$ 1 ,37 1  $ 

359,808 

126,609 

$ 127,980 $ 359,808 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 

investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
The County Pool does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

The Project's  investments were rated according to the following table at June 30, 2024: 

Investment Type 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market accounts 

Mutual funds 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Minimum Legal 

Total Rating 

1 ,402 NIA 

1 ,230,736 NIA 

35,777 NIA 

80,000 NIA 

1 ,347,9 1 5  

The Project's  investments were rated according to the following table at June 30, 2023 : 

Investment Type 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market accounts 

Total 

$ 

$ 

29 

Total 

1 ,37 1  

359,808 

126,609 

487,788 

Minimum Legal 

Rating 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

Not Rated 

$ 1 ,402 

1 ,230,736 

35,777 

80,000 

$ 1 ,347,9 15  

Not Rated 

$ 1 ,371 

359,808 

126,609 

$ 487,788 

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
Reclamation Project 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project's  investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 

provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project' s  investments by maturity at June 30, 2024. 

Investment Type 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market accounts 

Mutual funds 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1 ,402 

1 ,230,736 

35,777 

80,000 

1 ,347,9 1 5  

Remaining Maturity (in Months) 

1 2  Months or Less 13 to 24 Months 

$ 1 ,402 $ 

1 ,230,736 

35,777 

80,000 

$ 1 1 7 , 1 79 $ 1 ,230,736 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Project's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 

provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Project' s  investments by maturity at June 30, 2023.  

Remaining M aturity (in Months) 

Investment Type 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market accounts 

Total 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1 ,37 1  

359,808 

126,609 

487,788 

12 Months or Less 13 to 24 Months 

$ 1 ,37 1  $ 

359,808 

126,609 

$ 127,980 $ 359,808 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 

investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
The County Pool does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

The Project's  investments were rated according to the following table at June 30, 2024: 

Investment Type 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market accounts 

Mutual funds 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Minimum Legal 

Total Rating 

1 ,402 NIA 

1 ,230,736 NIA 

35,777 NIA 

80,000 NIA 

1 ,347,9 1 5  

The Project's  investments were rated according to the following table at June 30, 2023 : 

Investment Type 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market accounts 

Total 

$ 

$ 

29 

Total 

1 ,37 1  

359,808 

126,609 

487,788 

Minimum Legal 

Rating 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

Not Rated 

$ 1 ,402 

1 ,230,736 

35,777 

80,000 

$ 1 ,347,9 15  

Not Rated 

$ 1 ,371 

359,808 

126,609 

$ 487,788 
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 
 
The California Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: “The California Government Code 
requires that a financial institution secure deposit made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in 
an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). 
The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited 
by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure Project deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.” At year end the Project had $807,374 in 
financial institutions that were not covered by FDIC, but were covered by collateralized securities of the financial 
institutions where the deposits were maintained. 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the County’s investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect 
to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial 
credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or 
government investment pools. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The informal investment policy of the Project contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. 
 
Fair Value Measurement 
 
The Project categorizes its fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy established by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the 
fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are quoted 
prices for similar assets in active markets and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 
Investments classified in Level 2 are valued using the following inputs: 

 
 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets based on matrix pricing; 
 Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; or 
 Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other 

means. 
 
The Project has no investments categorized in Level 3. When valuing Level 3 securities, the inputs or methodology are 
not necessarily an indication of the risks associated with investing in those securities. Changes in valuation techniques 
may result in transfers into or out of an assigned level within the disclosure hierarchy. 

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
Reclamation Project 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 

The California Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: "The California Government Code 
requires that a financial institution secure deposit made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in 
an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit) . 
The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 1 1 0% of the total amount deposited 
by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure Project deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits." At year end the Project had $807,374 in 
financial institutions that were not covered by FDIC, but were covered by collateralized securities of the financial 
institutions where the deposits were maintained. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker­
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the County's investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect 
to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial 
credit risk does not apply to a local government's  indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or 
government investment pools. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The informal investment policy of the Project contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. 

Fair Value Measurement 

The Project categorizes its fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy established by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the 
fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are quoted 
prices for similar assets in active markets and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

Investments classified in Level 2 are valued using the following inputs : 

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets based on matrix pricing; 
• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; or 
• Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other 

means. 

The Project has no investments categorized in Level 3 .  When valuing Level 3 securities, the inputs or methodology are 
not necessarily an indication of the risks associated with investing in those securities. Changes in valuation techniques 
may result in transfers into or out of an assigned level within the disclosure hierarchy. 
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 

The California Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: "The California Government Code 
requires that a financial institution secure deposit made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in 
an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit) . 
The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 1 1 0% of the total amount deposited 
by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure Project deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits." At year end the Project had $807,374 in 
financial institutions that were not covered by FDIC, but were covered by collateralized securities of the financial 
institutions where the deposits were maintained. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker­
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the County's investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect 
to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial 
credit risk does not apply to a local government's  indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or 
government investment pools. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The informal investment policy of the Project contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. 

Fair Value Measurement 

The Project categorizes its fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy established by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the 
fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are quoted 
prices for similar assets in active markets and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

Investments classified in Level 2 are valued using the following inputs : 

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets based on matrix pricing; 
• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; or 
• Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other 

means. 

The Project has no investments categorized in Level 3 .  When valuing Level 3 securities, the inputs or methodology are 
not necessarily an indication of the risks associated with investing in those securities. Changes in valuation techniques 
may result in transfers into or out of an assigned level within the disclosure hierarchy. 
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Fair Value Measurement (Continued) 

 
The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of investments held by the Project as of June 30, 2024:  
 

Fair Value 
Measurement 

Using

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs (Level 2) June 30, 2024
Investments by fair value level

Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,230,736$          1,230,736$          
Mutual funds 80,000                 80,000                 

Total investments by fair value level 1,310,736$          1,310,736            

Investments not subject to fair value hierarchy: 
Monterey County Investment Pool 1,402                   
Money market accounts 35,777                 

Total investments not subject to fair value hierarchy 37,179                 

Total investments 1,347,915$          
 

 
The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of investments held by the Project as of June 30, 2023:  
 

Fair Value 
Measurement 

Using

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs (Level 2) June 30, 2023
Investments by fair value level

Negotiable certificates of deposit 359,808$             359,808$             

Total investments by fair value level 359,808$             359,808               

Investments not subject to fair value hierarchy: 
Monterey County Investment Pool 1,371                   
Money market accounts 126,609               

Total investments not subject to fair value hierarchy 127,980               

Total investments 487,788$             
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Fair Value Measurement (Continued) 

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of investments held by the Project as of June 30, 2024: 

Fair Value 

Measurement 

Using 

Significant Other 

Observable 

Inputs (Level 2) 

Investments by fair value level 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Mutual funds 
$ 1,230,736 $ 

Total investments by fair value level 

Investments not subject to fair value hierarchy: 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Money market accounts 

$ 

Total investments not subject to fair value hierarchy 

Total investments 

80,000 

1 ,310,736 

$ 

June 30, 2024 

1 ,230,736 

80,000 

1 ,310,736 

1 ,402 

35,777 

37, 179 

1 ,347,915  

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of investments held by the Project as of June 30, 2023 : 

Investments by fair value level 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Total investments by fair value level 

loves tments not subject to fair value hierarchy: 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Money market accounts 

Fair Value 

Measurement 

Using 

Significant Other 

Observable 

Inputs (Level 2) 

$ 359,808 

$ 359,808 

Total investments not subject to fair value hierarchy 

Total investments 

3 1  

$ 

$ 

June 30, 2023 

359,808 

359,808 

1 ,371 

126,609 

127,980 

487,788 
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Fair Value Measurement (Continued) 

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of investments held by the Project as of June 30, 2024: 

Fair Value 

Measurement 

Using 

Significant Other 

Observable 

Inputs (Level 2) 

Investments by fair value level 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Mutual funds 
$ 1,230,736 $ 

Total investments by fair value level 

Investments not subject to fair value hierarchy: 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Money market accounts 

$ 

Total investments not subject to fair value hierarchy 

Total investments 

80,000 

1 ,310,736 

$ 

June 30, 2024 

1 ,230,736 

80,000 

1 ,310,736 

1 ,402 

35,777 

37, 179 

1 ,347,915  

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of investments held by the Project as of June 30, 2023 : 

Investments by fair value level 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Total investments by fair value level 

loves tments not subject to fair value hierarchy: 

Monterey County Investment Pool 

Money market accounts 

Fair Value 

Measurement 

Using 

Significant Other 

Observable 

Inputs (Level 2) 

$ 359,808 

$ 359,808 

Total investments not subject to fair value hierarchy 

Total investments 

3 1  

$ 

$ 

June 30, 2023 

359,808 

359,808 

1 ,371 

126,609 

127,980 

487,788 
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

Investment in County Investment Pool 
 
The Project is a participant in the Monterey County Investment Pool (Pool). These pooled funds are carried at amortized 
cost which approximates fair value. Available cash balances are controlled and invested by the County Treasurer in 
pooled investment funds in order to provide safety, liquidity and investment returns for all funds. Interest earnings from 
these funds are credited to the Project’s account on a quarterly basis.  
 
The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 53534, 
53601, 53635, and 53648. The county is restricted to invest in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered 
warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable 
certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The funds maintained by the County are either 
secured by federal depository insurance or are collateralized. The Pool is not required to be rated. Interest earned is 
deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the Pool. 
The fair value of participants’ position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares.  
 
The Pool is not registered as an investment company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) nor is it an 
SEC Rule 2a7-like pool. California Government Code statutes and the County Board of Supervisors set forth the various 
investment policies that the County Treasurer follows. The method used to determine the value of the participant’s 
equity withdrawn is based on the book value, which is amortized cost, of the participant’s percentage participation on 
the date of such withdrawals.  
 
Annual reports of the investment pool may be obtained from the Monterey County Treasurer, Post Office Box 891, 
Salinas, California  93902. 
 
 
Note 4 – Receivables 
 
At June 30, receivables consist of the following: 
 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Water sales - due from Pebble Beach Co. and
affiliated golf courses 1,029,840$        1,484,209$        

Due from customers 30,618               11,551               

Total 1,060,458$        1,495,760$        
 

 
These balances are believed to be collectible in full; therefore, an allowance for doubtful accounts has not been 
established.  
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Investment in County Investment Pool 

The Project is a participant in the Monterey County Investment Pool (Pool). These pooled funds are carried at amortized 

cost which approximates fair value. Available cash balances are controlled and invested by the County Treasurer in 

pooled investment funds in order to provide safety, liquidity and investment returns for all funds. Interest earnings from 
these funds are credited to the Project's  account on a quarterly basis. 

The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 53534, 
5360 1 ,  53635, and 53648. The county is restricted to invest in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered 

warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer's  investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable 

certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The funds maintained by the County are either 

secured by federal depository insurance or are collateralized. The Pool is not required to be rated. Interest earned is 
deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the Pool. 

The fair value of participants ' position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares. 

The Pool is not registered as an investment company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) nor is it an 

SEC Rule 2a7-like pool. California Government Code statutes and the County Board of Supervisors set forth the various 
investment policies that the County Treasurer follows. The method used to determine the value of the participant' s 
equity withdrawn is based on the book value, which is amortized cost, of the participant's  percentage participation on 

the date of such withdrawals. 

Annual reports of the investment pool may be obtained from the Monterey County Treasurer, Post Office Box 89 1 ,  
Salinas, California 93902. 

Note 4 - Receivables 

At June 30, receivables consist of the following: 

Water sales - due from Pebble Beach Co. and 

affiliated golf courses 

Due from customers 

Total 

June 30, 2024 

$ 1,029,840 

30,618 

$ 1 ,060,458 

June 30, 2023 

$ 

$ 

1 ,484,209 

1 1 ,55 1 

1 ,495,760 

These balances are believed to be collectible in full; therefore, an allowance for doubtful accounts has not been 

established. 
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Investment in County Investment Pool 

The Project is a participant in the Monterey County Investment Pool (Pool). These pooled funds are carried at amortized 

cost which approximates fair value. Available cash balances are controlled and invested by the County Treasurer in 

pooled investment funds in order to provide safety, liquidity and investment returns for all funds. Interest earnings from 
these funds are credited to the Project's  account on a quarterly basis. 

The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 53534, 
5360 1 ,  53635, and 53648. The county is restricted to invest in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered 

warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer's  investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable 

certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The funds maintained by the County are either 

secured by federal depository insurance or are collateralized. The Pool is not required to be rated. Interest earned is 
deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the Pool. 

The fair value of participants ' position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares. 

The Pool is not registered as an investment company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) nor is it an 

SEC Rule 2a7-like pool. California Government Code statutes and the County Board of Supervisors set forth the various 
investment policies that the County Treasurer follows. The method used to determine the value of the participant' s 
equity withdrawn is based on the book value, which is amortized cost, of the participant's  percentage participation on 

the date of such withdrawals. 

Annual reports of the investment pool may be obtained from the Monterey County Treasurer, Post Office Box 89 1 ,  
Salinas, California 93902. 

Note 4 - Receivables 

At June 30, receivables consist of the following: 

Water sales - due from Pebble Beach Co. and 

affiliated golf courses 

Due from customers 

Total 

June 30, 2024 

$ 1,029,840 

30,618 

$ 1 ,060,458 

June 30, 2023 

$ 

$ 

1 ,484,209 

1 1 ,55 1 

1 ,495,760 

These balances are believed to be collectible in full; therefore, an allowance for doubtful accounts has not been 

established. 
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Note 5 – Capital Assets 

Proceeds from the issuance of the 1992 Certificates of Participation were used to construct facilities for wastewater 
reclamation and distribution. The Project does not own these facilities, but instead owns the rights to the reclaimed 
water for resale. The value of these rights is amortized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of 
the wastewater reclamation plant and distribution system, which is forty years. 

The recorded amortizable value of the water rights is equal to the costs incurred to construct facilities for wastewater 
reclamation and distribution, as well as other capital costs, in order to account for these in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States for intangible assets. As a result, capital outlays have been capitalized 
into this account. 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows: 

 Balance  Transfers/  Balance  
July 1, 2023  Additions  Deletions  Adjustments  June 30, 2024

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Construction in progress 401,116$     138,779$     -$   (44,270)$     495,625$     

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 401,116   138,779   - (44,270) 495,625   

Capital assets, being amortized:

Water resale rights 71,031,235  92,624   - 44,270 71,168,129  

Total capital assets, being amortized 71,031,235  92,624   - 44,270 71,168,129  

Less accumulated amortization:

Water resale rights (34,532,017)   (1,779,207)  -   -  (36,311,224)  

Total accumulated amortization (34,532,017)   (1,779,207)  -   -  (36,311,224)  

Total capital assets being amortized, net 36,499,218  (1,686,583)  - 44,270 34,856,905  

Total capital assets, net 36,900,334$    (1,547,804)$    -$  -$  35,352,530$    

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

 Balance  Transfers/  Balance  
July 1, 2022  Additions   Deletions   Adjustments June 30, 2023

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Construction in progress 505,755$     971,539$    -$  (1,076,178)$    401,116$    

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 505,755   971,539   - (1,076,178) 401,116   

Capital assets, being amortized:

Water resale rights 69,955,057  -  -  1,076,178  71,031,235   

Total capital assets, being amortized 69,955,057  -  -  1,076,178  71,031,235   

Less accumulated amortization:

Water resale rights (32,756,234)    (1,775,783)   -  -  (34,532,017)  

Total accumulated amortization (32,756,234)    (1,775,783)   -  -  (34,532,017)  

Total capital assets being amortized, net 37,198,823  (1,775,783)   - 1,076,178 36,499,218   

Total capital assets, net 37,704,578$    (804,244)$       -$  -$  36,900,334$    
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Proceeds from the issuance of the 1 992 Certificates of Participation were used to construct facilities for wastewater 
reclamation and distribution. The Project does not own these facilities, but instead owns the rights to the reclaimed 
water for resale. The value of these rights is amortized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of 
the wastewater reclamation plant and distribution system, which is forty years. 

The recorded amortizable value of the water rights is equal to the costs incurred to construct facilities for wastewater 
reclamation and distribution, as well as other capital costs, in order to account for these in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States for intangible assets. As a result, capital outlays have been capitalized 
into this account. 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows: 

Balance Transfers/ Balance 

July 1 ,  2023 Additions Deletions Adjustments June 30, 2024 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress $ 401 , 1 1 6 $ 138,779 $ $ (44,270) $ 495,625 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 401 , 1 1 6 138,779 (44,270) 495,625 

Capital assets, being amortized: 

Water resale rights 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 92,624 44,270 7 1 , 1 68,  129 

Total cap ital assets, being amortized 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 92,624 44,270 7 1 , 1 68,  129 

Less accumulated amortization: 

Water resale rights (34,532,0 17) ( 1 ,779,207) (36,3 1 1 ,224) 

Total accumulated amortization (34,532,0 17) ( 1 ,779,207) (36,3 1 1 ,224) 

Total capital assets being amortized, net 36,499,2 18  ( 1 ,686,583) 44,270 34,856,905 

Total capital assets, net $ 36,900,334 $ ( 1 ,547,804) $ $ $ 35 ,352,530 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Balance Transfers/ Balance 

July 1 ,  2022 Additions Deletions Adjustments June 30, 2023 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress $ 505,755 $ 97 1 ,539 $ $ ( 1 ,076, 1 78) $ 401 , 1 1 6  

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 505,755 97 1 ,539 (1 ,076, 1 78) 401 , 1 1 6  

Capital assets, being amortized: 

Water resale rights 69,955,057 1 ,076, 178 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 

Total capital assets, being amortized 69,955,057 1 ,076, 178 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 

Less accumulated amortization: 

Water resale rights (32,756,234) ( 1 ,775,783) (34,532,017) 

Total accumulated amortization (32,756,234) ( 1 ,775,783) (34,532,017) 

Total capital assets being amortized, net 37, 198,823 (1 ,775,783) 1 ,076, 178 36,499,2 1 8  

Total capital assets, net $ 37,704,578 $ (804,244) $ $ $ 36,900,334 
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Proceeds from the issuance of the 1 992 Certificates of Participation were used to construct facilities for wastewater 
reclamation and distribution. The Project does not own these facilities, but instead owns the rights to the reclaimed 
water for resale. The value of these rights is amortized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of 
the wastewater reclamation plant and distribution system, which is forty years. 

The recorded amortizable value of the water rights is equal to the costs incurred to construct facilities for wastewater 
reclamation and distribution, as well as other capital costs, in order to account for these in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States for intangible assets. As a result, capital outlays have been capitalized 
into this account. 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows: 

Balance Transfers/ Balance 

July 1 ,  2023 Additions Deletions Adjustments June 30, 2024 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress $ 401 , 1 1 6 $ 138,779 $ $ (44,270) $ 495,625 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 401 , 1 1 6 138,779 (44,270) 495,625 

Capital assets, being amortized: 

Water resale rights 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 92,624 44,270 7 1 , 1 68,  129 

Total cap ital assets, being amortized 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 92,624 44,270 7 1 , 1 68,  129 

Less accumulated amortization: 

Water resale rights (34,532,0 17) ( 1 ,779,207) (36,3 1 1 ,224) 

Total accumulated amortization (34,532,0 17) ( 1 ,779,207) (36,3 1 1 ,224) 

Total capital assets being amortized, net 36,499,2 18  ( 1 ,686,583) 44,270 34,856,905 

Total capital assets, net $ 36,900,334 $ ( 1 ,547,804) $ $ $ 35 ,352,530 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Balance Transfers/ Balance 

July 1 ,  2022 Additions Deletions Adjustments June 30, 2023 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress $ 505,755 $ 97 1 ,539 $ $ ( 1 ,076, 1 78) $ 401 , 1 1 6  

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 505,755 97 1 ,539 (1 ,076, 1 78) 401 , 1 1 6  

Capital assets, being amortized: 

Water resale rights 69,955,057 1 ,076, 178 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 

Total capital assets, being amortized 69,955,057 1 ,076, 178 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 

Less accumulated amortization: 

Water resale rights (32,756,234) ( 1 ,775,783) (34,532,017) 

Total accumulated amortization (32,756,234) ( 1 ,775,783) (34,532,017) 

Total capital assets being amortized, net 37, 198,823 (1 ,775,783) 1 ,076, 178 36,499,2 1 8  

Total capital assets, net $ 37,704,578 $ (804,244) $ $ $ 36,900,334 
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Note 5 – Capital Assets (Continued) 

The water resale rights are owned by MPWMD, but title to the construction assets is held by CAWD, PBCSD and 
others. The dollar value at historic cost of the portions owned by each entity is as follows: 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

CAWD (plant) 40,555,722$       40,452,906$    
PBCSD (distribution system) 28,269,846    28,235,768  
MPWMD (software) 29,056   29,056    
Open space users (irrigation systems) 1,459,777   1,459,777  
Cal-Am (pump station partial ownership) 853,728    853,728  

Total water resale rights 71,168,129    71,031,235  

Construction in progress 495,625    401,116  

Total 71,663,754$       71,432,351$    

Note 6 – Payables 

At year end, payables consist of the following: 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Accounts payable - trade:
Vendors for operating expenses 107,086$     259,935$    

Total 107,086$     259,935$    

Accounts payable - affiliates:
PB Co. (debt service reimbursement) 4,899$     -$    
MPWMD (salaries, software, fee) 112,396   -  
CAWD (operations and maintenance) 142,190   -  
PBCSD (operations and maintenance) 123,817   757,001  

Total 383,302$     757,001$    

Note 7 – Long-Term Debt 

There was no long term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2024. Long-term debt activity for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023 One Year

Publicly-offered: 
1992 Certificates of participation 2,600,000$       -$  (2,600,000)$        -$ -$    

Total long-term debt 2,600,000$       -$  (2,600,000)$        -$ -$
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 5 - Capital Assets (Continued) 

The water resale rights are owned by MPWMD, but title to the construction assets is held by CAWD, PBCSD and 

others. The dollar value at historic cost of the portions owned by each entity is as follows: 

Note 6 - Payables 

CAWD (plant) 

PBCSD (distribution system) 

M PWMD (software) 

Open space users (irrigation systems) 

Cal-Am (pump station partial ownership ) 

Total water resale rights 

Construction in progress 

Total 

At year end, payables consist of the following: 

Accounts payable - trade: 

Vendors for operating expenses 

Total 

Accounts payable - affiliates : 

PB Co. (debt service reimburs ement) 

MPWMD (salaries ,  software, fee) 

CAWD (operations and maintenance) 

PBCSD (operations and maintenance) 

Total 

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 

$ 40,555,722 $ 40,452,906 

28,269,846 28,235,768 

29,056 29,056 

1 ,459,777 1 ,459,777 

853 ,728 853 ,728 

7 1 ,  168 , 129 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 

495,625 40 1 , 1 16  

$ 7 1 ,663,754 $ 7 1 ,432,35 1  

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 

$ 107,086 $ 259,935 

$ 107,086 $ 259,935 

$ 4,899 $ 

1 1 2,396 

142, 190 

123,817  757,001 

$ 383,302 $ 757,001 

There was no long term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2024. Long-term debt activity for the year ended 

June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

July I ,  2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023 One Year 

Publicly-offered: 

1 992 Certificates of participation $ 2,600,000 $ $ (2,600,000) $ $ 

Total long-term debt $ 2,600,000 $ $ (2,600,000) $ $ 
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Note 5 - Capital Assets (Continued) 

The water resale rights are owned by MPWMD, but title to the construction assets is held by CAWD, PBCSD and 

others. The dollar value at historic cost of the portions owned by each entity is as follows: 

Note 6 - Payables 

CAWD (plant) 

PBCSD (distribution system) 

M PWMD (software) 

Open space users (irrigation systems) 

Cal-Am (pump station partial ownership ) 

Total water resale rights 

Construction in progress 

Total 

At year end, payables consist of the following: 

Accounts payable - trade: 

Vendors for operating expenses 

Total 

Accounts payable - affiliates : 

PB Co. (debt service reimburs ement) 

MPWMD (salaries ,  software, fee) 

CAWD (operations and maintenance) 

PBCSD (operations and maintenance) 

Total 

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 

$ 40,555,722 $ 40,452,906 

28,269,846 28,235,768 

29,056 29,056 

1 ,459,777 1 ,459,777 

853 ,728 853 ,728 

7 1 ,  168 , 129 7 1 ,03 1 ,235 

495,625 40 1 , 1 16  

$ 7 1 ,663,754 $ 7 1 ,432,35 1  

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 

$ 107,086 $ 259,935 

$ 107,086 $ 259,935 

$ 4,899 $ 

1 1 2,396 

142, 190 

123,817  757,001 

$ 383,302 $ 757,001 

There was no long term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2024. Long-term debt activity for the year ended 

June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

July I ,  2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023 One Year 

Publicly-offered: 

1 992 Certificates of participation $ 2,600,000 $ $ (2,600,000) $ $ 

Total long-term debt $ 2,600,000 $ $ (2,600,000) $ $ 
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Note 7 – Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Certificates of Participations - Variable Rate Bonds 

To finance the original construction project, MPWMD issued Variable Rate Demand Certificates of Participation - 
Wastewater Reclamation Project Series 1992 Bonds (COPs) in December 1992 in the amount of $33,900,000, that 
matured in July 2022. The COPs are in minimum denominations of $100,000 or any integral multiple thereof or, during 
any reset period on or after the conversion date, in the minimum denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 
The COPs bear interest at a variable rate unless the interest rate is converted to a reset rate for a rest period or to a fixed 
rate to the maturity of the COPs. The variable rate is the rate necessary to produce a par bid if the COPs were sold on 
the day the rate is computed. The COPs accrue interest at a variable rate determined weekly, as provided in the official 
statement of the COPs. The bonds were paid in full in fiscal year 2023.  

Note 8 – Advances Payable 

There was no advances payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2024. Advances payable activity for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023 One Year

Direct borrowings and placements:
Advance from Pebble Beach Co. 552,000$          -$       (552,000)$       -$     -$      

Total long-term debt 552,000$          -$  (552,000)$     -$     -$    

Advance from Pebble Beach Company 

Repayment of $5,520,000 for bond costs incurred and advanced by Pebble Beach Company prior to July 1, 2013, to be 
reimbursed over ten years at $552,000 per year. The final payment was made in fiscal year 2023.  

Note 9 – Risk Management 

The Project is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and 
omission, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Although ownership of all assets is transferred to either CAWD 
or PBCSD once they are placed in service, the Project purchases property, liability, and earthquake insurance for the 
aforementioned assets. 

CAWD purchases its share of property and liability insurance through the California Sanitation Risk Management 
Project (“CSRMA”). CSRMA is an established public entity risk pool that operates as a common risk management and 
insurance program for 60 government members. Liability insurance is purchased as a separate policy for the Project. 
Property insurance is covered under CAWD’s policy and the costs are allocated back to the Project. The deductible risk 
of loss is retained for general liability claims. The agreement with the risk pool provides that it will be self-sustaining 
through member premiums and additional policies purchased from commercial insurance companies for general 
liability claims and for excess workers’ compensation claims. Financial statements may be obtained from CSRMA, 100 
Pine Street, 11th Floor, San Francisco, California 94111. 
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Certificates of Participations - Variable Rate Bonds 

To finance the original construction project, MPWMD issued Variable Rate Demand Certificates of Participation 
Wastewater Reclamation Project Series 1992 Bonds (COPs) in December 1 992 in the amount of $33,900,000, that 
matured in July 2022. The COPs are in minimum denominations of $ 1 00,000 or any integral multiple thereof or, during 
any reset period on or after the conversion date, in the minimum denomination of$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 
The COPs bear interest at a variable rate unless the interest rate is converted to a reset rate for a rest period or to a fixed 
rate to the maturity of the COPs. The variable rate is the rate necessary to produce a par bid if the COPs were sold on 
the day the rate is computed. The COPs accrue interest at a variable rate determined weekly, as provided in the official 
statement of the COPs. The bonds were paid in full in fiscal year 2023 . 

Note 8 - Advances Payable 

There was no advances payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2024. Advances payable activity for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Direct borrowing; and placements:  

Advance from Pebble Beach Co. 

Total long-term debt 

Advance from Pebble Beach Company 

Balance 

July 1 ,  2022 

552,000 $ 

Additions 

$ 

$ 

-----

552,000 $ 
===== 

$ 

$ 

Deletions 

Balance 

June 30, 2023 

(552,000) $ 
-----

(552,000) $ 
===== 

$ 

$ 

Due Within 

One Year 

Repayment of $5,520,000 for bond costs incurred and advanced by Pebble Beach Company prior to July 1 ,  20 13 ,  to be 
reimbursed over ten years at $552,000 per year. The final payment was made in fiscal year 2023 . 

Note 9 - Risk Management 

The Project is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and 
omission, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Although ownership of all assets is transferred to either CAWD 
or PBCSD once they are placed in service, the Project purchases property, liability, and earthquake insurance for the 
aforementioned assets. 

CAWD purchases its share of property and liability insurance through the California Sanitation Risk Management 
Project ("CSRMA"). CSRMA is an established public entity risk pool that operates as a common risk management and 
insurance program for 60 government members. Liability insurance is purchased as a separate policy for the Project. 
Property insurance is covered under CAWD's policy and the costs are allocated back to the Project. The deductible risk 
of loss is retained for general liability claims. The agreement with the risk pool provides that it will be self-sustaining 
through member premiums and additional policies purchased from commercial insurance companies for general 
liability claims and for excess workers' compensation claims. Financial statements may be obtained from CSRMA, 1 00 
Pine Street, 1 1Floor, San Francisco, California 94 1 1 1 . 
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Certificates of Participations - Variable Rate Bonds 

To finance the original construction project, MPWMD issued Variable Rate Demand Certificates of Participation 
Wastewater Reclamation Project Series 1992 Bonds (COPs) in December 1 992 in the amount of $33,900,000, that 
matured in July 2022. The COPs are in minimum denominations of $ 1 00,000 or any integral multiple thereof or, during 
any reset period on or after the conversion date, in the minimum denomination of$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 
The COPs bear interest at a variable rate unless the interest rate is converted to a reset rate for a rest period or to a fixed 
rate to the maturity of the COPs. The variable rate is the rate necessary to produce a par bid if the COPs were sold on 
the day the rate is computed. The COPs accrue interest at a variable rate determined weekly, as provided in the official 
statement of the COPs. The bonds were paid in full in fiscal year 2023 . 

Note 8 - Advances Payable 

There was no advances payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2024. Advances payable activity for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Direct borrowing; and placements:  

Advance from Pebble Beach Co. 

Total long-term debt 

Advance from Pebble Beach Company 

Balance 

July 1 ,  2022 

552,000 $ 

Additions 

$ 

$ 

-----

552,000 $ 
===== 

$ 

$ 

Deletions 

Balance 

June 30, 2023 

(552,000) $ 
-----

(552,000) $ 
===== 

$ 

$ 

Due Within 

One Year 

Repayment of $5,520,000 for bond costs incurred and advanced by Pebble Beach Company prior to July 1 ,  20 13 ,  to be 
reimbursed over ten years at $552,000 per year. The final payment was made in fiscal year 2023 . 

Note 9 - Risk Management 

The Project is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and 
omission, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Although ownership of all assets is transferred to either CAWD 
or PBCSD once they are placed in service, the Project purchases property, liability, and earthquake insurance for the 
aforementioned assets. 

CAWD purchases its share of property and liability insurance through the California Sanitation Risk Management 
Project ("CSRMA"). CSRMA is an established public entity risk pool that operates as a common risk management and 
insurance program for 60 government members. Liability insurance is purchased as a separate policy for the Project. 
Property insurance is covered under CAWD's policy and the costs are allocated back to the Project. The deductible risk 
of loss is retained for general liability claims. The agreement with the risk pool provides that it will be self-sustaining 
through member premiums and additional policies purchased from commercial insurance companies for general 
liability claims and for excess workers' compensation claims. Financial statements may be obtained from CSRMA, 1 00 
Pine Street, 1 1Floor, San Francisco, California 94 1 1 1 . 
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Note 9 – Risk Management (Continued) 

The Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Project (“ACWA/JPIA”) was formed under a 
joint-powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code to provide insurance protection for its members. The 
property, general liability and workers compensation programs are ACWA/JPIA’s pooled programs. The member 
districts are provided coverage for losses in excess of their individually selected retrospective allocation points (“RAP”) 
which are similar to a deductible. A portion of the excess is self-insured by ACWA/JPIA where all members share the 
losses. 

Individual claims (and aggregate public liability and property claims) in excess of ACWA/JPIA’s self- insured levels 
are covered by excess insurance policies purchased from outside commercial insurance carriers. Financial statements 
may be obtained from ACWA/JPIA, Post Office Box 619082, Roseville, California 95661. 

PBCSD purchases insurance against various risks of loss through the ACWA/JPIA. PBCSD also purchases a Dam 
failure liability insurance policy and an earthquake insurance policy which are not pooled programs. These coverage 
policies are provided by ACWA/JPIA through purchases from outside commercial insurance carriers. Dam failure 
liability insurance provides coverage resulting from failure of Forest Lake Reservoir, and earthquake insurance provides 
coverage for certain Reclamation Project assets including the Poppy Hills Storage Tank, Forest Lake Reservoir 
embankments and hyperon liner. 

Workers compensation insurance is provided by the entities contracted from CAWD and PBCSD to provide operations 
and maintenance for the Project. 

Note 10 – Net Investment in Capital Assets 

At June 30, the net investment in capital assets portion of net position consisted of the following: 

2024 2023

Net investment in capital assets
Capital assets, nondepreciable 495,625$     401,116$     
Capital assets, amortizable, net 34,856,905  36,499,218  

Total net investment in capital assets 35,352,530$      36,900,334$      

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services Districtty
Reclamation Project 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District 
Reclamation Project 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Note 9 - Risk Management (Continued) 

The Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Project ("ACWA/JPIA") was formed under a 

joint-powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code to provide insurance protection for its members. The 
property, general liability and workers compensation programs are ACWA/JPIA's pooled programs. The member 

districts are provided coverage for losses in excess of their individually selected retrospective allocation points ("RAP") 

which are similar to a deductible. A portion of the excess is self-insured by ACWA/JPIA where all members share the 
losses. 

Individual claims (and aggregate public liability and property claims) in excess of ACWA/JPIA's self- insured levels 
are covered by excess insurance policies purchased from outside commercial insurance carriers. Financial statements 

may be obtained from ACWA/JPIA, Post Office Box 6 1 9082, Roseville, California 9566 1 .  

PBCSD purchases insurance against various risks of loss through the ACWA/JPIA. PBCSD also purchases a Dam 
failure liability insurance policy and an earthquake insurance policy which are not pooled programs. These coverage 

policies are provided by ACWA/JPIA through purchases from outside commercial insurance carriers. Dam failure 

liability insurance provides coverage resulting from failure of Forest Lake Reservoir, and earthquake insurance provides 
coverage for certain Reclamation Project assets including the Poppy Hills Storage Tank, Forest Lake Reservoir 

embankments and hyperon liner. 

Workers compensation insurance is provided by the entities contracted from CAWD and PBCSD to provide operations 

and maintenance for the Project. 

Note 10 - Net Investment in Capital Assets 

At June 30, the net investment in capital assets portion of net position consisted of the following: 

2024 2023 

Net investment in capital assets 

Capital assets,  nondepreciable $ 495,625 $ 40 1 , 1 1 6  

Capital assets,  amortizable, net 34,856,905 36,499,2 1 8  

Total net investment in capital assets $ 35,352,530 $ 36,900,334 
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Note 9 - Risk Management (Continued) 

The Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Project ("ACWA/JPIA") was formed under a 

joint-powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code to provide insurance protection for its members. The 
property, general liability and workers compensation programs are ACWA/JPIA's pooled programs. The member 

districts are provided coverage for losses in excess of their individually selected retrospective allocation points ("RAP") 

which are similar to a deductible. A portion of the excess is self-insured by ACWA/JPIA where all members share the 
losses. 

Individual claims (and aggregate public liability and property claims) in excess of ACWA/JPIA's self- insured levels 
are covered by excess insurance policies purchased from outside commercial insurance carriers. Financial statements 

may be obtained from ACWA/JPIA, Post Office Box 6 1 9082, Roseville, California 9566 1 .  

PBCSD purchases insurance against various risks of loss through the ACWA/JPIA. PBCSD also purchases a Dam 
failure liability insurance policy and an earthquake insurance policy which are not pooled programs. These coverage 

policies are provided by ACWA/JPIA through purchases from outside commercial insurance carriers. Dam failure 

liability insurance provides coverage resulting from failure of Forest Lake Reservoir, and earthquake insurance provides 
coverage for certain Reclamation Project assets including the Poppy Hills Storage Tank, Forest Lake Reservoir 

embankments and hyperon liner. 

Workers compensation insurance is provided by the entities contracted from CAWD and PBCSD to provide operations 

and maintenance for the Project. 

Note 10 - Net Investment in Capital Assets 

At June 30, the net investment in capital assets portion of net position consisted of the following: 

2024 2023 

Net investment in capital assets 

Capital assets,  nondepreciable $ 495,625 $ 40 1 , 1 1 6  

Capital assets,  amortizable, net 34,856,905 36,499,2 1 8  

Total net investment in capital assets $ 35,352,530 $ 36,900,334 
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Variance
with Budget

Budget Positive
(unaudited) Actual (Negative)

Resources (Inflows)

Water sales 3,314,586$         2,917,115$         (397,471)$          
Fixed cost charge 1,420,215           1,420,215           -                         
Investment earnings (loss) 20,170                35,301                15,131                

Amounts available for appropriation 4,754,971           4,372,631           (382,340)            

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)

Plant operating costs 2,388,311           2,208,891           179,420              
Distribution costs 600,000              421,262              178,738              
General and administrative 244,525              264,931              (20,406)              
Potable water purchases 6,750                  3,535                  3,215                  
Interest expense - PB Co. -                         1,518                  (1,518)                
MPWMD user fee 75,000                81,657                (6,657)                
Water resale rights - capital purchases/projects -                         138,779              (138,779)            
Other expenses 35                       118                     (83)                     

Total charges to appropriations 3,314,621           3,120,691           193,930              
Budgetary surplus (deficit) 1,440,350$         1,251,940           (188,410)$          

Reconciliation of budgetary to GAAP basis

Less: amortization - noncash expense (1,779,207)         
Add: additions to water resale rights/capital purchases 138,779              

Change in net position (388,488)$          

Reclamation Project
Budgetary Comparison Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024
Resources and Charges to Appropriations

Carmel Area Wastewater District/Pebble Beach Community Services District
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Budgetary Comparison Information 
Resources and Charges to Appropriations 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Variance 
with Budget 

Budget Positive 

(unaudited) Actual (Negative) 

Resources (Inflows) 

Water sales $ 3,3 14,586 $ 2,91 7, 1 1 5  $ (397,47 1)  
Fixed cost charge 1 ,420,2 1 5  1 ,420,2 1 5  
Investment earnings (loss) 20, 1 70 35,301 1 5, 1 3 1  

Amounts available for appropriation 4,754,97 1 4,372,63 1 (382,340) 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 

Plant operating costs 2,388,3 1 1  2,208,89 1 1 79,420 
Distribution costs 600,000 421 ,262 1 78,73 8 
General and administrative 244,525 264,93 1 (20,406) 
Potable water purchases 6,750 3,535 3 ,2 1 5  
Interest expense - PB Co. 1 ,5 1 8  (1 ,5 1 8) 
MPWMD user fee 75,000 8 1 ,657 (6,657) 
Water resale rights - capital purchases/projects 1 38,779 ( 13 8,779) 
Other expenses 35 1 1 8  (83) 

Total charges to appropriations 3,3 14,62 1 3 , 120,69 1 1 93,930 

Budgetary surplus (deficit) $ 1 ,440,350 1 ,25 1 ,940 $ ( 1 88,410) 

Reconciliation of budgetary to GAAP basis 

Less: amortization - noncash expense (1 ,779,207) 
Add: additions to water resale rights/capital purchases 1 3 8,779 

Change in net position $ (3 88,488) 
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Reclamation Project 

Budgetary Comparison Information 
Resources and Charges to Appropriations 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Variance 
with Budget 
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